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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT
ASSOCIATION, INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management TSPI Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (the “Association”™), is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free form
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Trustees reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the members.

R. G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the members, has audited the
financial statements of the Association in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and
in its report to the members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit.
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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2017 and 2016
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 9/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226

Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000

Fax +63 (2) 894 1985
Internet www.kpmg.com.ph

Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Trustees and Members

TSPI Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

3" Floor, Tulay sa Pag-unlad Inc. (TSPI) Building
2363 Antipolo St., Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TSPI Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

(the Association), which comprise the statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the statements of comprehensive jncome,
statements of changes in fund balance and statements of cash flows for tHegears then
ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other expianatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements.p
respects, the financial position of the Association agiat

and its financial performance and its cash flows for i &
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFR®).
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CERTIFIED TRUECOHY
FROM THE OM’CEMAL

i d %Ip?d
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statenjen @g,ct;lq
independent of the Association in accordance with the Code.c cs. TarPr i
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together W|th the eth[c: reqmrements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Basis for Opinion

-



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. )

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulific
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collision,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal cont::ﬁc_a_l.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant Egtbe@udjpgn order to des;gn qu%
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, butmetfortheplipuserss
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the s;ibléféﬂbn?s:tnternal R%I@{gque

O U"'S()Uth Md]\ ti

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policiesfjused and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made] ypﬁ}fﬁagemeqt-mz”ﬁ COPY
O T S

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management'sjuse of the gomg coneerNbakis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obfaine a\whether a matetial
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that m ICQS[ i nificagiaioubt on
the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern IT“_ we contitide Pnat a
material Unacertainty exists, we are required to draw attention i odr: e =
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosulies are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 26 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is
the responsibility of management. The supplementary information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

Uorasia P. Uscomas

VANESSA P. MACAMOS
Partner
CPA License No. 0102309
IC Accreditation No. F-2017-017-0, valid until November 26, 2020
SEC Accreditation No. 1619-A, Group A, valid until March 15, 2020
Tax Identification No. 920-961-311
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-38-2016
Issued December 16, 2016; valid until December 15, 2019
PTR No. 6615139MD
Issued January 3, 2018 at Makati City

April 27, 2018 . /.,
Makati City, Metro Manila
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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization

STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND F

Wm
, .Ekc':ot*.“‘

woords iR

Note l2017 RECE Y an CON TSR 4
N —— |
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis 7 P45,314,459 P15,026,605
Short-term investments 8 3,192,525 3,166,857
Receivables 9 6,732,349 7,037,006
Due from related party 12 8,197,755 -
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets 10 751,173,471 761,178,427
Held-to-maturity (HTM) investments 11, 19 184,515,887 97,676,722
Property, equipment and computer software-net 13 5,872,085 4,281,852
Retirement asset 21 2,133,244 3,623,610
Other assets 14 1,135,417 2,135,085
P1,008,267,192 P894,126,164
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 16, 18 P24,525,348 P39,860,632
Claims payable 15 106,813,789 4,154,358
Aggregate reserves 17 54,794,197 13,132,536
Equity value reserves 18 89,918,184 329,894,308
Due to related party 12 - 1,068,209
Total Liabilities 276,051,518 388,110,043
Fund Balance
Guaranty fund reserves 19 104,458,625 90,136,823
General fund balance 20 68,085,811 74,122,967
Funds assigned for members’ benefits 20 421,204,142 237,459,898
Funds assigned for capacity building 20 188,169,987 104,320,428
Remeasurement of retirement asset 21 (1,401,590) 556,694
Fair value reserve on AFS financial assets 10 (31,005,816) (623,997)
Fair value reserve on HTM investments to be
amortized in profit or loss 10 (7,295,485) 43,308
Total Fund Balance 732,215,674 506,01%}1
P1,008,267,192 P894,126,164
2,/
({’éjl
See Notes to the Financial Statements. i ~ i it Vo |
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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
Nofe 2017 2016
NET MEMBERS’ CONTRIBUTIONS AND
PREMIUMS
Members’ contributions and premiums 12 P286,436,025 P151,267,356
Members' contributions and premiums ceded
to reinsurers (291,449) (225,500)
286,144,576 151,041,856
CLAIMS AND BENEFITS EXPENSES
Claims and benefits 15 53,087,373 39,286,339
Increase in aggregate reserves 17 41,661,661 719,954
Increase in equity value reserves 18 43,498,336 31,735,310
138,247,370 71,741,603
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES
Salaries and other employee benefits 12, 21, 22 50,963,049 48,043,133
Marketing and sales 12, 23, 25 43,667,989 17,961,564
Planning, meetings and conferences 4,241,974 2,895,507
Depreciation and amortization 13 3,733,772 4,085,036
Repairs and maintenance 2,830,382 1,396,528
Office supplies 1,690,104 1,676,057
Communication, light and water 1,378,486 827,625
Professional fees 662,978 771,981
Transportation and travel 474,373 297,938
Advertising and promotion 311,528 271,122
Dues and fees 186,511 216,715
Representation and entertainment 87,861 67,376
Donation 39,283 50,000
Taxes and licenses 20,819 18725
Miscellaneous 669,449 705,724
110,958,558 79,277,031
OPERATING INCOME 36,938,648 23,222
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) % =
Interest income 7,8 9 10, 11 35,768,598 33,56,921
Dividend income 10 480,601 4502343
Gain on sale of investments 10 86,997 313471
Other income (expense) - net (12,918) 1565 @
Interest expense 18 (762,473) (808 41@
1:“ e 5 Taterpal I{f:?\'“?"ﬁ:t?:s
NET INCOME (assnssn Ao 2t
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Years Ended December 31

Note

2017 2016

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Item that may be reclassified to profit or
loss
Net change in fair value of reserve on AFS
financial assets 10

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Remeasurement gain (loss) of retirement asset 21

(P30,381,819)  (P7,204,013)

(1,958,284) 166,025

(32,340,103) (7,037,988)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

P40,159,350 P26,432,228

See notes to the Financial Statements.
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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Fair Value
Reserve on
Held-to-
Fair Value Maturity
Funds Funds Reserve on  Investments
] Assigned Assigned for Remeasurement Available-for- to be
Guaranty Fund General Fund for Members' Capacity of Retirement Sale Financial Amortized in
Reserves Balance Benefits Building Asset Assets Profitor Loss
(Note 19) {Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 10} {Note 11) Total
Balance as at December 31, 2016 P90,136,823 P74,122,967 P237,459,898 P104,320,428 P556,694 (P623,997) P43,308 P506,016,121
Net income for the year - 72,499,453 - - - - - 72,499,453
Other comprehensive income:
Net change in fair value reserve of available-
for-sale financial assets - - - - - (30,381,819) - (30,381,819)
Remeasufement of refirement asset e - - - - (1,958,284) - - (1,958,284)
Total comprehensjive income for the year ) §a - 72,499,453 - - (1,958,284) (30,381,819) - 40,159,350
7 Ty = 13
Transfer to guara yfmjaj TR = =T 114,321,802 (14,321,802) - - - - - -
Appropriation of equitf-value and’interest T .z |- |
(Notes 16 and 1§) = . =, et &= |8 - - 123,219,556 52,808,381 - - - 176,027,937
Transfer to funds absignéd for membets ISURS 1
benefits and for ¢ppacity building- - T o B - {103,470,594) 72,429,416 31,041,178 - - - -
Transfer of forfeitel} equiff~value &nd Imterest ¢ = 16
(Notes 16 and 1 e e g I 4 - 29,255,787 - - - - - 29,255,787
Utilization of members-bénefits fund “3 P - - (11,904,728) - - - - (11,204,728)
Amortization of fai =1 ) =R
amortized to pro S h- o L . 2 3 - 4 5 (7,338,793) (7,338,793)
(:« j ;« (:3} %“ = 14,321,802 (88,536,609) 183,744,244 83,849,559 - - (7,338,793) 186,040,203
Balance as at De mbe'i’h,?.oti. .3, ¥ ?41:154,458,625 58,085,811  P421,204,142 P188,169,987 (P1,401,580) (P31,005,816) (P7,295,485) P732,215,674
Forward R \\ W
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Fair Value

/ Reserve on
! Held-to-
Fair Value Maturity
Funds Reserve on Investments
Assigned Funds Assigned Remeasurement Available-for- to be
Guaranty Fund  General Fund  for Members’ for Capacity of Retirement  Sale Financial ~ Amortized in
Reserves Balance Benefits Building Asset Assets  Profit or Loss
(Note 19) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 10) (Note 11) Total
Balance as at December 31, 2015 P82,573,455 P67,985,334 P225 627,464 PD8,389,662 P390,669 P6,580,016 P105,681 P481,652,291
Net income for the year s 33,470,216 - - e = ¥ 33,470,216

Other comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value reserve of available-for-

sale financial assets - - - - (7,204,013) {7,204,013)
Change in actuarial gain - - - 166,025 - 166,025
Total comprehensive income for the year 33,470,216 - - 166,025 (7,204,013) 26,432 228
Transfer to guaranty fund 7,563,368 (7,563,368) - - - - - -
Transfer to funds assigned for members'
benefits - (13,838,449) 13,838,449 - - - - -
Transfer td-funds assigned for capacity
building e S— (5,930,766) - 5,930,766 - - - -
Utilization of members’ its fund g - - (2,006,015) - - - - (2,006,015)
Amortization of fair valug reserve fo be.. __ e b4
amortized to profit or Igss _ x> -~ 5 s = 13- - - - - - (62,383) (62,383)
’:._-: ' “ 2 756 3}1368 (27,332,583) 11,832,434 5,930,766 - - (62,383) (2,068,398}
Balance as at Decembefi31,.2016 : E§95€133§823 P74,122,967 P237,459,898 P104,320,428 P556,694 (P623,997) P43,308 P506,016,121
== - = e I
—= S el
See Notes to the Financip! Statements. —~ E =8 |5
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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Net income P72,499,453 P33,470,216
Adjustments for:
Increase in equity value reserve 18 43,498,336 31,735,310
Increase in aggregate reserves 17 41,661,661 718,954
Interest income 7,8 9 10, 11 (35,768,598) (33,335,921)
Depreciation and amortization 13 3,733,772 4,085,036
Provision for claims incurred but not yet
reported 15 1,135,951 (634,081)
Interest expense 18 762,473 808,419
Dividend income 10 (480,601) (450,343)
Retirement expense 21 457,082 249,606
Gain on sale of investments 10 (86,997) (313,171)
Loss on sale of assets 13,046 4,623
Operating income before working capital
changes 127,425,578 36,339,648
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (6,034,896) 1,765,084
Due from related party 12 (8,197,755) 5,197,277
Other assets 14 999,668 (1,190,538)
Increase in short-term investments (25,668) (25,462)
Increase (decrease) in:
Claims payable 17,620,076 (222,018)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities : (4,507,174) 3,346,889
Due to related party 12 (1,068,209) 1,068,209
Refund of equity value reserve 18 (1,061,444) (18,277,516)
Cash generated from operations 125,150,176 28,001,573
Interest paid (4,816,471) (1,049,967)
Contribution to retirement asset 21 (925,000) (900,000)

Net cash provided by operating activities

119,408,705 %6,051 606

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:

Available-for-sale financial assets 10" {428,0%93;885)===(;

4

Held-to-maturity investments i
Property, equipment and computer software

Proceeds from: ‘:
Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets ;

@R o

k

1iresi of Internal Revefdf9 -‘:

138171 (538708 M 1414 1; (2

208,66

Disposal of held-to-maturity investments i[j o P¥7 576,000
Interest incomie received 1. RUM 851996 IBAGIN AB4, 780,945
Dividend received i 10 480,601, 410,343
Net cash used in investing activities 5: Yf“" .;?(_4{'25216;& ‘1R ES22,895,062)
P iy \=AE E% Y b B R UWFTUER
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Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING
ACTIVITY
Utilization of members' benefit fund (P11,904,728) (P2,006,015)
Net cash used in financing activity (11,904,728) (2,008,015)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 30,287,854 1,150,529
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 7 15,026,605 13,876,076
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 7 P45,314,459 P15,026,605
See Notes to the Financial Statements.
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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

TSPl Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (the Association) was registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission and was given license to operate as
a mutual benefit association by the Insurance Commission (IC) on May 12, 2006 and
December 22, 2006, respectively. The Association was organized primarily to extend
financial assistance to the members and immediate members of their families in the
form of death benefits, medical reimbursement, pension, loan redemption
assistance, disability benefit and other services for the benefit of the members.

On January 25, 2016, the IC renewed the Association’s license as a mutual benefit
association until December 31, 2018,

As provided in Section 30 (e) of the National Internal Revenue Code, the Association
is exempt from the payment of income tax with respect to income it receives as a
nonstock, nonprofit organization.

The Association’s registered address is at 3™ Floor, Tulay sa Pag-unlad Inc. (TSPI)
Building, 2363 Antipolo St. Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati City.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are based on International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. PFRS
which are issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council, consist of
PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and P 7'“?1-"**"‘-'“-‘e‘ﬂem-"a".-‘-‘r-.-;:. ;

Bureay of Internal Re S
Basis of Measurement RDO 50 Sout reiige
These financial statements have been prepared pn the historical cos{‘ bgéﬁéa&cep
for the following items, which are measured on a theg'pﬁ'a}l?ﬁtl:e]ach re ortmg date.

P‘nP‘f’
ltems Measuferletittsdd i 1 O;-:u( INAL
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets Fair vglue &F\;i
Retirement asset Fair vilue l-%ahfds;setsp sen

valuepf the-4¥ined Hene ﬁﬁéen

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements of the Association are presented in Phlhppl 0, which
is also the Association’s functional currency. All financial information p %

h

Philippine peso has been rounded off to the nearest peso, except when ot
indicated.

Approval for Issuance of Financial Statements

The financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 was
approved by the Executive Committee as authorized by the Board of Trustees on
April 27, 2018.




Use of Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the _financial statements and accompanying notes. The
estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience .and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying™values of assets
and liabilities that are readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future period affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are described in Note 4 fo the
financial statements.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these financial statements, except for the changes in accounting
policies as explained below.

Certain comparative amounts in the statements of comprehensive income have been
reclassified as a result of change in the classification of certain accounts in 2017
(see Note 25).

Adoption of Amendments to Standard
The Association has adopted the following amendments to standard starting
January 1, 2017 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies.

= Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows).
The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required to provide
comparative information for preceding periods. Early application of the
amendments is permitted.

The Association has no financing activity that involves liabilities. The
Association’s financing activity in 2017 is merely related to the utilization of the
funds assigned for members’ benefits.
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Classification of Insurance and Investment Contracts

The Association issues contracts that transfer insurance or financial risk or both.
Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk.
Such risk includes the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an
insured event such as death, accident or disability. The Association may also
transfer insurance risk in insurance contracts through its reinsurance arrangement to
hedge a greater possibility of claims occurring than expected. Stch contracts may
also transfer financial risk. As a general guideline, the Association defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an
insured event that is more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not
occur. Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no
significant insurance risk.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains as an
insurance contract for the remainder of its life, even if the insurance risk reduces
significantly during the period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or
expired. Investment contracts can, however, be reclassified as insurance coniracts
after inception if the insurance risk becomes significant.

Insurance Contracts
The Association issues membership certificates, governing rules and regulations,
and application forms that transfer insurance risk.

Conventional Annual Insurance Contracts

These contracts insure events associated with human life (death or survival) over an
annual duration. Members’ contributions and premiums are recognized as revenue
when paid by the cerlificate holder. Benefits are recognized as an expense when
they are incurred.

A liability for contractual benefits that is expected to be incurred in the future is
recognized for policies that are in-force as at the reporting dates. The proportion of
written members’ contribution and premium attributable to subsequent periods or to
risks that have not yet expired is deferred as “Aggregate reserves” in the statements
of assets, liabilities and fund balance. The change in the provision for unearned
members’ contribution and premium is taken to profit or loss in the order that
revenue is recognized over the period of risk. When the anticipated losses, loss
adjustment expenses, incentives and other acquisition costs, and maintenance costs
exceed the recorded aggregate reserves, and any future installment members’
contributions and premiums on existing policies, a deficiency reserve shall be
recognized by recording an additional liability for the deficiency, with a corresponding
charge to profit or loss.

Liability Adequacy Tests

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed for policies with
coverage that extend to beyond one year to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment
income from assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately
recognized in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association does not have any policies with
coverage of more than one year.
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Reinsurance Contracts Held

Contracts entered into by the Association with reinsurer which compensates the
Association for losses on one or more contracts issued by the Association and that
meet the classification reguirements for insurance contracts are classified as
reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification
requirements are classified as financial assets.

e,

The benefits recoverable to which the Association is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognized as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of
amounts due from reinsurers classified within insurance receivables. Reinsurance
liabilities are primarily members’ contributions and premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognized as expense when due. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with terms of each reinsurance
contract.

The Association assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment at least annually.
If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Association
reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance assets to its recoverable amount and
recognizes that impairment loss in profit or loss. The Association gathers the
objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process for
financial assets.

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition

Financial instruments are recognized in the statements of assets, liabilities and fund
balance when the Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognized on the trade date. The trade date is the date that an entity commits itself
to purchase or sell an asset.

Initial Recognition

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration given
(in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). Except for financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of
financial instruments includes fransaction costs. The Association classifies its
financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, available for
sale (AFS) financial assets, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, and loans and
receivables. The Association classifies its financial liabilities either as financial
liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired
or incurred and whether these are quoted in an active market. Management
determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and,
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting
date.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association has no financial assets and
liabilities at FVPL.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an
active market. These are not entered into with the intention of immediate or
short-term resale and are not held for trading.
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After initial measurement, the loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization, if any,
is included as part of “Interest income” in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association’s cash and Gash -equivalents,
short-term investments, receivables, due from related party and cash held by
investment manager/custodian under “Other assets® are classified under this
category.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original
maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.

HTM Investments. HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities for which management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Association sells or
reclassifies other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire
category would be tainted and reclassified at fair value as AFS financial assets. After
initial measurement, these investments are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance for impairment.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). The
amortization, if any, is included as part of “Interest income” in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association’s HTM investments amounted
to P184.52 million and P97.68 million, respectively (see Note 11).

AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are financial assets which are
designated as such, or do not qualify to be classified or have not been classified
under any other financial asset category. They are purchased and held indefinitely
and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value, other than impairment loss and foreign currency
differences on AFS equity securities, are recognized in other comprehensive income
as “Fair value reserve on AFS financial assets” and are presented within fund
balance. The losses arising from the impairment of such securities are recognized in
profit or loss. When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss.
The effective yield component of AFS debt securities is reported in profit or loss.

When the fair value of AFS financial assets cannot be measured reliably because of
lack of reliable estimates of unobservable inputs such as in the case of unquoted
equity instruments, these financial assets are allowed to be carried at cost less
impairment, if any.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association's AFS financial assets
amounted{o P751.17 million and P761.18 million, respectively (see Note 10).
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Reclassification of AFS Financial Assets fo HTM Investments

For a financial asset reclassified out of the AFS financial assets category to loans
and receivables or HTM investments, it shall reclassify the financial asset at its fair
value on the date of reclassification which becomes its new amortized cost. Any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognized in other comprehensive
income and any difference between the new amortized cost and maturity amount is
amortized in profit or loss over the remaining life of the investments using the
effective interest method similar to the amortization of a premium and a discount. If
the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any gain or loss that has been
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from fund balance to profit
or loss.

Other Financial Liabilities. 1ssued financial instruments or their component, which are
not classified as at FVPL are classified as other financial liabilittes where the
substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Association having an
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or lender.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an
integral part of the EIR. The amortization is included as part of “Interest expense” in
profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, this category includes the Association’s claims
payable, equity value reserves, accrued expenses and other liabilities (excluding
amounts payable to government agencies) and due to related party.

Fair Value Measurement

A number of the Association’s accounting policies and disclosures require the
measurement of fair value for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price), regardiess of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Where applicable, the Association uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Association uses market
observable data as far as possible. Fair value is categorized in different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique (see Note 6).

‘Day 1’ Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value
from other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based
on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market,
the Association recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair
value (a ‘Day 1’ difference) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some
other type of asset. In case where an observable data is used, the difference
between the transaction price and model! value is only recognized in profit or loss
when the-inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.
For each transaction, the Association determines the appropriate method of
recognizing the ‘Day 1’ difference amount.
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Impairment of Financial Assets

The Association assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred™*loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of
borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Loans and Receivables and HTM Investments. The Association first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Association determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for individually assessed accounts, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are
not included in the collective assessment for impairment. For the purpose of a
collective evaluation of impairment, loans and receivables are grouped on the basis
of credit risk characteristics such as type of borrower, payment status and term.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the excess of loan’s carrying amount over its net
realizable value, based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows from
the asset. The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
loan’s original EIR. Time value is generally not considered when the effect of
discounting is not material. The carrying amount of an impaired loan is reduced to its
net realizable value through the use of an allowance account and the accrual of
interest is discontinued. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the allowance for
impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment less is reversed to profit or
loss to the extent that the resulting carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
amortized cost had no impairment loss been recognized.

The Association performs a regular review of the age and status of these accounts,
designed to identify accounts with objective evidence of impairment and provide the
appropriate allowance for impairment loss. The Association writes off its
long-outstanding receivable accounts from deceased, unlocated, or migrated
debtors, where they have exhausted all efforts to collect.

AFS Financial Assets Carried at Fair Value. In case of quoted equity securities
classified as AFS financial assets, impairment indicators would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below cost. A decline in
excess of twenty percent (20%) should generally be regarded as significant while a
- decline in-a quoted market price that persists for nine months should generally be
considered to be prolonged.
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Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss in equity,
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognized, is recorded in profit or loss.
Subsequent increase in the fair value of an impaired AFS equity security is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments i

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance if, and only if, there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netting agreements, thus,
the related assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis in the statements of
assets, liabilities and fund balance. Income and expenses are presented on a net
basis only when permitted under PFRS, such as in the case of any realized gains or
losses arising from the Association’s frading activities.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

= the Association retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation fo pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

= the Association has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset;
or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Association has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor is fransferred control
of the asset, the asset recognized to the exient of the Association's continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Association could be
required to pay.

Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, and
impairment loss, if any.
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The intial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties, taxes, any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to s working
condition and location for s intended use, and the costs of dismantling and
removing the llems and restorng the site on which they are located. The cost of
replacing part of an Rem of property and equipment is recognized in the camying
value of the tem if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
tha part will flow to tha Asscciation and Its cost can be measured réfiably,

The cosis of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized as
expense in the perod in which they are incurred. Depraciation is recognized in profit
o loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lves of the assels.

The estimated useful lives of property and eguipment are as follows:

Mumber of Years
Office furniture and fictures 5
Transportaiion and equipment =]
Office equipment 3-8
Building and Improvements 5

The estimated useful lives, depreciation method, and residual values ara reviewed
pericdically and adjusted, i appropriste, to ensure that the period and method of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
items of properdy and equipment. Changes in the estimated useful lives,
gepraciation method, and residual valuas of property and equipment gre accounted
for by changing the depreciation method, as appropriste, and fregted as changes in
accounting estimates.

Whean an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefiis are expecied from liz disposal, the cost and the relaied
accumulated depreciation and impairmeant loss, if any, are removed from the
accounts and any resulting galn or logs arising from the retiremant or disposal 15
recognized in profit or loss,

Computer Software

Computer software is inttially meassured at cost which s comprised of costs incurred
{0 acquire the computer software (not an integral part of its relaied hardware} and
bring it to its intended use. All other costs of developing and maintaining computer
software are recognized as expense when incurred.

Subsequently, computer sofftware s measured at cost less amortization and
impairment, if any. Amortization s recognized in profil or loss on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the computer software, from the date that they are
available for use, not to exceed three (3) years.

Galns or losses ansing from the derecognition of the computer software are
measurad as the difference between the net disposal proceads and the camying
amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss.



Impairment of Non-financial Assels

At each reporting date, the Assoctation assesses whather there s any indication that
its non-financial assets such as property, equipment and computer software may be
impaired. When an indicator of impaimment exists, the Association estimates the
racoverable amount of the impaired assets. The recoverable amount s tha higher of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value In use, Fair value less costs of
disposal is the amount obtaingble from the sale of an asset inan arm’s length
transaction betwean knowledgeable and willing parties less costs of disposal while
value in use is the present valua of future cash flows expected to be derved from an
aseat.

In assessing value in use, the esfimated future cash flows are discounted to thair
present valus using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmeant
of the tima value of money and the risks specific to the assel.

Where the camying amount of an asse! exceeds s recoversble amount,
the impaired asset is writhen down to its recoverable amount An impairment loss is
recognized in profit ar loss In the peried in which i arises.

An assessment is made at each reparting date as to whather there is any indication
that previously recognized impsimment loss may no longer exist or may have
decreasad. I such indication exists, the recoversble amount Is estimated,

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only If there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the |ast
impairmant loss was recognized. If that is the case, the camying amount of the asset
iz increased to its recoverable amount. The reversal can be made oniy to the extent
that the resulting camying amount does not excesed the carrying amount that would
have baen determined, net of deprecigtion and amortization, had no impairment loss
been recognized. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal,
the depreciation and amortization is adjusted in future years to aliocate the asset’s
reviead carrying amount, less any residual vaius, on a systematic basls over its
remaining lifs,

Insurance Contract Lighilties

Agaregate Resenes

Aggregate resarves represent the accumulated total liability for policies in-foree as at
the reporting date. Such reserves are established at amount adequate to meet the
estimated future obligations to all members with in-forea policy. The reserves are
calculated using the actuarial methods and assumptions in accordance with statutory
requirements and as approved by the IC.

The comesponding change in aggregate reserves is presented as “Increase in
agaregate reserves” In profit or loss.

Equify Value Resenes

Equity value reserves represent the accumulated reserve for remittance to members.
In accordance with Section 402 of the Insurance Code, as Amended {the Insurance
Code), equity wvalue reserves are established at fifty percent (50%) of the total
mandatory membership contributions collected from every oulstanding membership
cartificates. The increase [n equity value reserves as a result of the coflection of
membership contribution s presented as “Increase in equity value reserves” in profit
ar loss.
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Effective December 1, 2014, the twenty percent (20%) surrender charge was no
longer imposed on equity value for cerificates paid for 18ss than three (3) continuous
years. Upon death or withdrawal of the member, equity value reserves contributed
and interestl thereon ame mfunded to ks members. Effective February 1, 201G,
interast rata on eguity value reserve was raduced from 2.00% to 0.50% as approved
by the BOT.
i

On QOctober 10, 2016, the [C approved the transfer of equity value reserves in the
fund balance based on ©ig letter to the Microinsurance Mutual Banefit Assoclation of
the Philippines and accounted as follows:

* pquity value reserves for delinguent members bayond the prescribed three (3)
years reinstatement period should be transferred to assigned surplus for the
benefil af the members provided that the Associafion initiste at lzast two {2)
actions o locate and inform the delinguent members. However, the Association
should maintain a schedule in case any of the mambers will make a claim in the
future,

»  unrefumed equity velue reserves of deceased members and equity value
resarves of resignad members (forfeited equity valug) before the effectivity of the
amended Insurance Code with less than 3 years of membership are fransferred
to general fund balance.

As required by the |2, this change in accounting policy will be applied prospectively.
The Association adopted the accounting policy in 2017 since aforementioned actions
required by the IC has to be performed including the validation of the delinguent and
resigned members in 2015.

Moreover, the Association reclassified inactive members® equity value reserves and
itz cormesponding interest to claims payable — equity value and intarest undar “Claims
payabla® to searegate inactive from active members starting 2017.

Eund Balance

Guaranty Fund Ressrves

Guaranty fund reserves represent reguired fund amounting to PS5.00 million,
and every year thersafter Incraased by an amount equivalent to five percent (5%) of
grass members’ contribution and premium collections until its amount has reached

twenty-five percent (25%) of the required networth for existing domestic life
insurance companias.

Genreral Fund Balance

General fund balance account represents the free and unassigned surplus of the
Assaciation.

Funds Assigned for Members’ Benefifs
Tha account pertaing to the amount appropriated for members' benefits such as
community development, transformation and microanterprise projects.

Funds Assigned for Capacity Building
Tha acecount pertains to the amount appropriated for capacity building such as
training of members and empioyesas and investmant in new syslems.

Remeasurement of Retirement Asset

FEemeasurameant of retirement assets pertain to the accumulated actuarial gains and
losses arising from experence and demographic assumptions of the defined benefit
obligation and gain {loss) in the plan asasets,
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Fair Value Reserve on AFS Financial Asseis
Fair valug reserve on AFS financial assets pertain to the cumulative amount of gains
and losses due to the revaluation of AFS financial assets.

Fair Value Reserve on HTM Investments

Fair valug reserve on HTM investmeants perlain (0. the net unrealized gain {loss) of
the Investments reclassified from AFS fo HTM &t date of reclassification. This
resanve is amortized to profit or loss with the unamortized premium o discount of the
reclassified investments through the effective inferest method.

Eevenue Racognition
Revenue is recognized to the extant that it is probabie that the economic benefits will
flow to the Associafion and the revenus can be measurad reliably.

Defermining whether the Association is Acling as Principal or an Agent o
The Associgtion assesses its revenus arangements against tha following critena to
determing whether it iz acting as a principal or an agent

= whether the Associgtion has primary responsibility for providing the senvices;
whether the Association has discretion in establishing pnces; and
s whether the Association bears the credit risk.

If the Association has determined # i3 acting &8s a principal, the Association
recognizes revenue on gross basis with the amount remitted to the other party being
accounted as parl of cost and expanses. I the Associafion has determined if is
acting as an agent, only the net amount retaired is recognized as revenue.

Tha Association has determined that it s acting as principsl in As revenue
arrangements.

Tha following specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognized:

Members' Contribifions and Premiums

Members' confributions and premiums are recognized when dus. The annual
members' contribution of two hundred forty pesos is for mandatory life insurance
cover while pramiums Inclede the following:

One peso weekly for every thousand pesos of loan availed for credit ifg;
Ten pesos annually for every thousand pesos loan availed for morigage
redemplicn nsurance,

=  Two hundred forly pesos annually for life plus insurance plan cover; and

*  Six hundred fifty pesos annually for life maximum insurance cover.

Wembers' confributions and premiums ceded to reinsurerz are recognized as
expense when the policy becomes effectve.

interag! Incoma

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments |s recognized In profit or
loes using effective interest method.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the sharaholder's right to receive payment is
eaiablizhed.

Gain on Sale of Investrmenis

This pertains to the amount in excess of the selling price against the carrying amount
af the AFS financial azsets in a ssle tranzaction.
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Other Income

Other incoma arsas mainly from surcharge fees due to the early termination of the
policy and recovery of marketing and selling expensas for Microhealth products.
Claims, Benefits, and ogni

Ciaims and Benefits .

Claims consist of benefits and claims paid and unpald to members, .denied and
resisted claims and incurred but not reparted (IBNR) claims. Provision for IENR i3
made for the cost of claims incurred as of each reporting date but not reported until
after the reporting date basad on the Association's exparience and historical data.
Differences between the provision for outstanding claims at the reporting date and
subsagquent revisions and seffiements are included in profit or loss of subsequent
years, Death claims and surmmenders are recorded on the basis of nofifications
received.

General and Administrative Expenses

Expenses are recognized when the decreass in future ecanomic banefits related to a
decrease in an asset or increase of a lisbility has arisen thalt can be measured
reflably, Expanses ara recognized when incumed.

Inferest Expense
Interest expense on accumulated eguity value reserves of aclive membars are
recognized in the profit or loss when it accrues.

Emploves Benefits

Short-term Employes Benefits

Short-tarm employee beneflis are expensed as the related sernvice is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected o be pald If the Association has a
prasent legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of pasl service
provided by the employaa and the obligation can be astimated refiably.

Retirement Benefils

The Assaciation's net obligation in respect of the defined benafit plan 1s caloulated by
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employess have eamad in the
current and prior periods, discounting thal amount and deducting the fair value of any
plan azsets.

The caiculation of defined bonefit obligation |2 performed on a penodic basis by @
gualified actuary using the projectad unit eredit method. When the calculation results
in a potential azzet for the Association, the recognized asset is limited 1o the presant
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Remeasurements of the retirement asset, which comprise actuarial gains and lossas,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
{if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediataly in other comprehensive
income. The Association determines the net interest expensa (income) on the
rafirement asset for the perod by applying the discount rete used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the retirement
assat, taking into account any changas in the retirement asset during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to the defined benefit plan are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting

change in benefit that relates fo past sewvice or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognizad immeadiately in profit or loss,
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Tha Association recognizes gains and losses on the seftlement of a defined benefit
plan when the sefiement occurs.

Provisions and Confingencizs

Provisions are recognized when the Assaciation has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of 2 past event when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embaodying economic benafits will be required to seltie the obligaficn and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent labiliies are not recognized in the financial statements. These are
dizclozed in notes to the financial statements unless the probability of an outflow of
rasources ambodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assats are not
recognized in the financlal statements but are disclosed in notes to the financial
staternants when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Related Pary Transactions

Related party relationships exist when a party has the ability to control, directly, or
indirectly through cne or more intermediaries, the other parly or exercse significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions, Such
relationship also exists between andior among entiies which are under commen
control with the reporting enterprise, or befween and/or amang the enterprize and its
key management personnel, trustees, or its members.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Association’s
assels, labilites and fund balance at the reporting date (adjusting evenls) are
reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclozed in the notes to the financial stataments whan material.

-4 -



Standards |ssued but Mot Yet Adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are affective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017. However, the Association has not applied
the following new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements.
Except as Indicated below, the Assoclation expects that the impact of the new and
amendments to standards will not be materal to the financial EEEHEHE.

Effective January 1, 2018

Applying PFRS 8 Financial instruments with PFRS 4 insurance Confracts
(Amendments fo PFRE 4). The amendments provide a temporary exemption
from PFRE 9, where an entity is permitted to defer application of PFRS 9 in 2018
and continue to apply PAS 30 if it has not applled PFRS 8 befors and its
activities are predominantly connected with insurance. A qualified enfity is
permitted to apply the temporary exemplion for annual reporting periods
beginning before January 1, 2021. The amendments also provide an overlay
approach to prasentation when applying PFRS 8 wheme an entity is parmitied to
reclassify between profit or loss and other comprehensive income the difference
between the amounts recegnized in profit or loss under PFRS 9 and those that
would have been reported under PAS 38, for designated financial assets. A
financlal asset |s eligibe for designation if it is not held for an acfivity that is
unconnected with contracts in the scope of PFRS 4, and If it Is measured at fair
value through profit or loss under PFRS 8, but would not have been under
FAS 39. An entity is generally parmitted to start applying the overay approach
only when It first applies PFRS 9, including after previously applying the
temporany exemplion,

The amendments parmitting the temporary exemption is for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and the amendments allowing the overlay
approach are applicable when an entity first applies PFRS 9. The Assoclation
availed the ternporary exemption.

PFRS 8 Financial Instruments (2014), PFR'S 8 (2014) replaces PAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measuremenf and supersades the praviously
published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and
measurement reguirements (in 2008 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
model {in 2013}, PFRS 8 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets. including a new expected credit loas model for
calculating Impaiment, guidance on own credit risk on financial Tiabilites
measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge accounting
requirements published in 2013. PFRS § incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and
introduces significant improvemeants by aligning the accounting more closely with
rnsk management.

The new standard iz to be applied retrospectively for annual perods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permittad.

The Assaciation availed the temporary exemption in the implementation of
PFRS 9 as allowead by PFRES 4 abova.
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PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Cusfomers replaces PAS 11
Construction Confracis, PAS 18 Revenue, intermational Financlal Reporfing
interpretatios Commiftee (IFRIC) 13 Customer Loyally Programmes, [FRIC 18
Transfer of Assels from.Customers and 81C-31 Revenue - Barfer Transactions
Involving Advertising Sesvices. The new standard introduces & new revenue
recogniticn modef for contracts with customers which specifies that revenue
should be recognized when {or as) a company trensfers coftrol af goods ar
services to a customer at the amount to which the company expects to be
entitled. Depending on whather certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized
over time, in a manner that best reflects the company's performance, or at a
point in time, when control of the goods or services is fransferred o the
customer. The stendard does not apply to insurance coniracts, financial
instruments or leaze contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRSs. It slso
doas not apply If two companies in the same line of business exchange nan-
monetary asseis to faciliate sales to other parties. Furthermaore, it a contract with
a customer is parly in the scope of another PFRS, then the guidance on
separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedancea.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018, with early adoplion permitied.

The Association believes that the new revenue recognifion moded will heve no
significant Impact on its financial statements since the Company’s main revenus
stream is accountad under PFRS 4.

4. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

Thea Assoclation makes judgment and key estimates and assumptions that affect tha
reparted amounis of assets and labiliies within the nexi financial year
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on histoncal expenence
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are beleved to be
reascnable under the circumstances.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting poficies that have the most significant effect on the
amount recegrized in the financial statements are as follows:

J

a) Classification of Financial Instrumenis

The Association exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, financial liability or an
equity instrument in asccerdanca with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset or liability. The substance of
a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, govems its classification in the
statements of assels, liabilities and fund balance. In addition, the Association
classifies assets by evaluating among others, whather the asset s quoted or not
In an active market Included in the evaluation on whether a financial assel is
guoted in &n active market is the determination on whether the guoted prices are
readily and regularly evailable and whether those prices reprasent actual and
regularly occurring market ransactions on an arm's length basis.

As gt December 31, 2017 and 2018, the Assccialion's financial instuments are

classified as loans and receivables, HTM investmeants, AFS financial assets and
othar financial llabllities.

- 16 -



b} Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted markel prices or guoted prices for similar assets or liabiliies al the
reporting date. if the finaacial instrument Is nol traded in an active market, the fair
value is determined using valuation technigues. Where valuation techniques are
usad to detarmine fair values, they are validated and parlr:ndu:ally reviewsad by
management. All models are certified before they are used, | “and -models are
calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative markst
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data, however areas
such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatifties and comrelations
require management to make estimates, Changes in assumplions about thess
factors could affect reported fair values of financial instruments.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association's financial instruments
carried at fair value are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy (see
Mote ).

¢} Provisions and Contingencies
The Association, in the ordinery course of business, sets up appropnate
provisions for its present legal or constructive obligations, if any, In accordance
with its policies on provisions and contingencies. In recognizing and meastring
provisions. management fakes risk and uncartainties into account.

The Association is under an ongoing tax review for taxable year 2016. However,
management believes that ss of date it s not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required given that there is no result of the tax review yet

Estimates

impaimment of Financial Assels

(a) Financial Assels at Amonized Cost
The Association reviews its receivables to gssess impaimment at least on an
annual basis, or g3 the nead anses due to significant movements on certain
accounts, Receivables that are individually significant are assessed to determine
whather objective evidence of impairment exists on an individual basis, while
those that are not Individually significant are assessed for objective evidanco of
impairment either on an individual or on collective basis. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in the profit or loss, the Association
makas Judgmen! as to whether there are any observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decreaze in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of receivables before the decrease can be identified with an individual
receivable in that portfolio.

If there is an objective evidenca that an impaimment loss on receivables has been
incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference batween the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding
future credit losses) discounted at the financial asset's original EIR (e, the EIR
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be
reduced either directly or through use of an allowance accounl. The amount of
loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.

If, in @& subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event cccurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the
extant that the cammying value of the ass=t does not exceed its amortized cost at
the reversal dala.
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Thera were no Impaiment loss on finsncial assets &t amortized cost were
recognized in 2017 and 2016.

(b} AFS Financial Assets ™

The Aszociation considers that investments are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair wvalue below their cost
The Association evaluates among other factors, the normal wvolatility in
share/market price. In addition, impaiment may be appropriate when there is
evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and
sector performance, changes in technology, and operational and financing cash
flows.

As at Decamber 31, 2017 and 2016 the carrying amount of AFS financial assets
amounted to P751.17 million and PTE1.18 million, respectively (see Mote 10).
There were noe impalment loss recognized in 2017 and 2016 on the
Aszociation’s AFS financizl assets,

Liabilities Arising from Claims made under insurance Confracts

The ulimate lability arising from claims made under insurance confracts is the
Association's most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of
uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimation of the liabiity that the
Asgociation will ulimataly pay for such claims, The major sources of uncertaintias
are the frequency of claims due to contingencies covered and the timing of banefit
payments.

Claimg estimation by the Assoclation considars many factors such as industry
average morlality or morbidity experience, with sdjustments to reflect the
Association's historical experience. These liabilities form part of the Association's
IBENR which amounted to P4.52 million and P3.39 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respactivaly (saa Mota 15).

{a) Estimating Aggregafe Resenves

The Associafion estimatez the aggregate reserves for future contractual
obligations for contributions paid by determining the forty percent (40%) of the
unexpired portion of the member confributions collected each month on per
week, month, quarer, semi-annual and annual basis. For premium, cradit life
and other opticnal producis eighty percant (80%) of the unexpired portion is set-
up. The assumplion is based on & number of factors determined by an actuary
including the unearned premium factor.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, aggregate reserves amounted to
P54.78 million and P13.13 million, respectively (see Note 17),

(b) Estimating Retiremernt Benefits
The determination of the obligation and cost of ratirement benefits is dependent
on the selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates, expected
returns on plan assets and salary increass rates,

Whike the Association believes that the assumplions are reasonable and
approprigte, significant differences between actual experlence and assumplions
may materially affact the cost of employes benefits and related obligations,

As at Dacember 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association has a retirement asset of
P2.13 million and P3.62 million, respectvely (see Note 21).
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Refirament expense amounted to PD.46 million in 2017 and P0.25 million in 2016
while remeasurement of refirement asset amounted to P1.40 millien and P0.56
million az at December 31, 2017 and 2016 respectively (see Note 21).

§. Management of Insurance and Financial Risks "
The Association’s activities expose it to a varety of nisks such as financial and
Insurance rizks. The overall objective of rsk management iz to focus on the
unpredictability of financial and insurance contingencies o minimiza potantial
adverse effects on the financial condition of the Association,

The BOT of the Association has overall responsibility for the establishment and

aversight of the Association's risk management framework. The BOT has delegated
io the management the reasponsibility of developing and monitorng the Association's
risk management palicies,

The Association's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze
the risks faced by the Association, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to refiect changes in market conditions and the Association's
gctivities. The Association, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environmeant, in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Management is responsible for monitoring compliance with the rsk management
policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management
framewark In relation o the risks faced by the Association.

Regulatory Framework

Fegulators are interested in protecting the righis of the members and maintain dose
obsarvation to ensure that the Association is satisfactorily managing its affairs for the
benefit of membears, At the same tme, the regulabors are also interested in ensurnng
that the Association maintaing appropriate solvency position to meet liabilties arsing
from claims and that the risks are &t acceptable lavels

Capital Management

The Association’s chjective In managing fund balance is to maintaln high growth by
applying frea cash flow 1o -selective investments that would preciude the
Assoclalion's need of additional financing. The Aszociafion sets strategies with the
objective of establishing a versatile and resourceful financial management and fund
balance structure. Management has overall responsibility for manitoring of fund
balanca in proportion to risk. Profiles for ratios are set in the light of changes in the
Associgtion’s external environment and the rsks underying the Association's
business operations and industry,

The Assoclation's capltal Includes guaranty fund reserves, general fund balance,
funds assigned for members' benefits and for capacity building.

The Association monitors fund balance on the bazis of the debi-to-equity ratio which
is calculated as total debt divided by total fund balance. Total debt i= equivalent to
claims payable, accrued expenses and other labiites, dus to related party,

aggregate reserves and equity value reserves. Tolal equity comprises the fund
balanca.

LA



Debl-lo-equity ratio as al December 31 is as follows:

2017 2016
Taotal debt - P276,051,518 F3588,110.043
Total equity 732,215,674 508,016,121
Debt-to-equity ratio 37705 T8.70%

There weare no changes in the Association's approach to fund balance management
during the year,

The Association is subject to imposed capital requirements set by 10, Compliance
with thesa requiremeants is discussed below,

Networdh Requirement

Under the Insurance Code, mubual benefit associations must have available total
member's equity in an amount to be determined by the IC above all liahilties for
lcszes reported as networth requirement.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2018, the Association is compliant with the required
networth requirement based on the Associaton’s celculastions. However, the final
amount of the networth requirement can be determined only after the accounts of the
Assoclation have been examined by the IC, specifically as to admifted and non-
admitted assets as defined in the Insurance Code.

The estimated amounts of non-admitted assetz as defined In the Insurance Code
included in the Association's slatements of assets, llabilities and fund balance, which
ane subject to final determination by the |1C are as follows:

| 2017 2016
Property, equipment and compuber software - net P2,245,380 P1,353.037
Receivables 189,770 780,433
Other azseis 1,135 417 2,135,085

P3,570,537 P4, 268,555

Risk-Based Capital (RBC) Reguiraments

As per 1C's Memorandum Circular (IMC) No. 6-2006, every mutual benefit entity is
annually required to maintain an RBC ratio of at least one hundred percent {100%)
and not to fail the trand test. REC ratio is computed using the formula prescribed by
the IC. The RBC requirement is determined after considering the admitied value of
certain financial statement accounts whose final amounis can be determined only
after the axamination by the [C.

Failure to meet the minimum RBC rafio shall subject the Association to regulatory
intervention which could be at varous levels depending on the degres of the
violation,

The following table shows how the RBC ratio at December 31, 2017 and 2016 were
defermined by the Association based on the Association's internal calculations:

. 2017 2016
Metworth P715,699,940 P4958,123 858
Rizk-based capital requirement 16,626,708 11,717.8568
Risk-based capital ratio 4,605% 4.251%
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On December 28, 2016, the 1T released Circular Letter No. 2016-68, Implementation
Requirements for Financia! Reporting, Valuation Slandards for insurance Folicy
Resenes, and Amended Risk-based Capital (RECZ2) Framework, which provides,
among other things, that thalevel of sufficency for the amended RBC 2 shall be at
85" percentile level of suffickency for tha year 2017, 97.5" percentile for the year
2018, and 995" percentile for the year 2019. RBC 2 Framework shall ba made
effective January 1, 2017, =

As at Decomber 31, 2017 and 2016, the Association is compliant with the requined
RBC retio basaed on the Assoclation's intemal calculation.

Insurance Risk

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs
and the unceriainty of the amount of the resulting claim. The principal risk that the
Assaclation faces under ifs insurance contracts are that the actual claims and benefit
payments exceed the carrying value of the insurance liabilites, which was the
estimates, established using certain assumptions.

The table below sets out the concentrafion of fe insurance confract by type of
confract as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,

2017 S 2015
Grose af Met of Gross of Pt o
_Coniract Type Reinsurance  Reinsurance Reirsuranse Reinsurance
Corevehit life Pi08.255678  P108,107,664 PaT 788,736 PEY.GEY.851
Bacic life BB, 996 671 86, 902,690 B3 470620 83374305
L mmsmiuerm b &5 456 874 BE 445 501 a .
Life pius benefi 24 477,016 24 464 450 - 5
Morgage rdemption
benefit 1,236.786 1,224 341 s -

P286,436,026 P286,144,676 P151,267 356  P151,041 855

The Associgtion's exposure to insurance risk as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are
as follows:

7o Nate 2017 2018
Aggregate resarves 17 P54,794,197  P13,132 536
Equity value reserves 18 89,918,184 329,894,308

P144,712,381 P343,026 844

Key Assumplions

The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Associafion's past claims
development experience. This includes assumptions in respect of average claim
costs and claim numbers for each year. Additional gualitative judgments ane used to
assess the extent fo which past trends may not apply in the future. For example, one
off occurrence, changes in markst factors such as public aftitude to claiming,
economic conditions, as well as intemal factors such as portfolio mix, policy
conditions and claims handliing procedures. Judgment is further used to assess the
extent to which externsl factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation
affect the astimates.
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Sensitivity Analysis for Insurance Risk

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, it is estimated that a general increase of one
percent (1%) in aggregate and equity value reserves, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease the Association’s net income and equity by approximately
P1.44 million and P3.60 million, respectively. An equal change in the opposite
direction would have increased net income and equity by an equal but opposite

amount. LS

-

Financial Risks
The Association has significant exposure to the following financial risks and from its
use of financial instruments:

= Credit Risk
= |jquidity Risk
= Market Risk

There has been no change to the Association’s exposure to financial risks (i.e. credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk) or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks since prior financial year.

(a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Association if the counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises primarily
from the Association’s financial assets.

Except for HTM investments which mature on various dates, all of the
Association’s financial assets are current. Thus, the credit risk relating to these
financial assets are considered small due to the short settlement period involved.
The Association's HTM investments consist primarily of government securities.
Since these are backed by the full faith and credit of the Philippine Government,
these are generally considered to be free of credit risk.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit
exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dates are as
follows:

Note 12017 2016
Cash in bank and cash equivalents 7 P45,284,309 P14,996,456
Short-term investments 8 3,192,525 3,166,857
AFS financial assets 10 720,692,921 738,460,769
HTM investments 11 184,515,887 97.676,722
Receivables 9 6,732,349 7,037,006
Due from related party 12 8,197,755 -
Other assets (excluding prepaid
expenses and fidelity bond deposit) 14 88,318 123,067

P 968,704,064 P861,460,877

The Association’s concentration of credit risk arises from its investments in
government securities since the said investments amounted to P557.53 million
and P478.36 million which represent 55.30% and 47.44% of its total assets as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Notes 10 and 11).
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The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the
Association as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 by classifying assets according
to the Association’s credit grading of counterparties.

-

2017
Neither Past Due nor Impaired b
Non- Total Financial
investment Assets Neither =
Investment Grade - Past Due nor PastDueand ~
High-grade Satisfactory __Impaired Impaired Total
Cash in bank and cash
equivalents P45,284,309 P - P45,284,309 P - P45,284,309
Short-term investments 3,192,525 - 3,192,525 - 3,192,525
Receivables - 6,732,349 6,732,349 - 6,732,349
Due from related party - 8,197,755 8,197,755 - 8,197,755
AFS financial assets 720,692,921 - 720,692,921 - 720,692,921
HTM investments 184,515,887 - 184,515,887 - 184,515,887
Other assets (excluding
prepaid expenses and
fidelity bond deposit) : 88,318 88,318 - 88,318
P953,685,642 P15,018,422 P968,704,064 P - P968,704,064
2016
Neither Past Due nor impaired
Non- Total Financial
investment Assets Neither
Investment Grade - PastDue nor  Past Due and
High-grade Satisfactory Impaired Impaired Total
Cash in bank and cash
equivalents P14,996,456 P - P14,996,456 P - P14,998 456
Shart-term investments 3,168,857 - 3,166,857 - 3,166,857
Receivables - 7,037,008 7,037,006 - 7,037,006
AFS financial assets 738,460,769 - 738,460,769 - 738,460,769
HTM investments 97,676,722 B 97,678,722 - 97,676,722
Other assets (excluding
prepaid expenses and
fidelity bond deposit) - 123,067 123,067 - 123,067
P854,300,804 P7,160,073 P861,460,877 P - P861,460,877

The Association has no past due and impaired financial assets as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The Association uses a credit grading system based on the borrowers and
counterparties overall credit worthiness, as described below:

Investment High - Grade - This pertains to accounts with a very low probability of
default as demonstrated by the borrowers strong financial position and
reputation. The borrower has the ability to raise substantial amounts of funds
through credit facilities with financial institutions. The borrower has a strong debt
service record and a moderate use of leverage.

Non-investment Grade - Satisfactory - This pertains to current accounts with no
history of default or which may have defaulted in the past, but the conditions and
circumstances directly affecting the borrower’s ability to pay has abated already.
The borrower is expected to be able to adjust to the cyclical downturns in its
operations. Any prolonged adverse economic conditions would however
ostensibly create profitability and liquidity issues. The use of leverage may be
above industry or credit standards but remains stable.

Past Due and Impaired - This pertains to the allowance for impairment loss that

the Association recognizes due to the uncertainty of the collectability of the
Association’s receivables.
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(b) Liquidity Risk

(c)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Association’s approach in managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Association’s reputation.

-

The Association prepares weekly cash position report and weekly check
disbursement forecast, which assists in monitoring cash flow requirements.
Typically, the Association ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet
expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days, including servicing of
financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances
that cannot be predicted.

The maturity profile of the Association’s financial liabilities have contractual
maturities of one year or less as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017
Carrying Contractual
Note Amount Cash Flow
Accrued expenses and other liabilities* 16 P20,292,756 P20,292,756
Claims payable 15 106,813,789 106,813,789
Equity value reserves 18 89,918,184 89,918,184

P217,024,729 P217,024,729

*Accrued expenses and other liabilities shown above exclude payables fo regulatory agencies amounting to
P4.23 million.

2016
Carrying Contractual
Note Amount Cash Flow

Accrued expenses and other
liabilities® 16 P36,054,669 P36,054,669
Claims payable 156 4,154,358 4,154,358
Equity value reserves 18 329,894,308 329,894,308
Due to related party 12 1,068,209 1,068,209

P371,171,544 P371,171,544

*Accrued expenses and other liabilities shown above exclude payables to regulatory agencies amounting to
P3.81 million.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that causes changes in market prices, such as interest rate
and equity price risks. This will affect the Association’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return. The Association’s exposure to currency risk was assessed
by management to be insignificant.

Interest Rafe Risk
There are two types of interest rate risk:

»  Fair Value Interest Rate Risk - the risk that the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates; and

= Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk - the risk that future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

D
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Significant portion of the Association’s investments is composed of interesf-bearing
debt instruments carried at fair value. As a result, the Association is exposed to fair
value interest rate risk. The Association’s interest-bearing financial instruments as at
December 31, 2017 and 2048 are as follows:

Note . 2017 2016

Cash in bank and cash equivalents 7 P45,284,309 P14,996,456
Short-term investments 8 3,192,525 3,166,857
AFS financial assets 10 720,692,921 738,460,769
HTM investments - ) 11 184,515,887 97,676,722

P953,685,642 P854,300,804

The following table demonstrates Association’s best estimate of the sensitivity to
reasonable possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, to
the Association’s net income and equity as at December 31:

Effect on Net

Change in Basis Points (bps) Income/Equity

2017 Increase by 13 bps P4,502,001
Decrease by 13 bps (4,502,001)

2016 Increase by 13 bps P1,110,591
Decrease by 13 bps (1,110,591)

The Association does not carry debt instrument with variable interest rate and, thus,
is not exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is mitigated by the Association’s BOT by constructing a portfolio of
debenture instruments with diversified maturities. Any excess cash of the Association
are temporarily invested in time deposits with the term to maturity of 35 days up to 3
months and later placed in instruments with longer tenors.

The Association believes that the analysis above is considered to be representative
of the interest rate risk.

Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency
risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Association's equity price risk exposure relates to equity securities designated
as AFS financial assets with carrying amount of P30.48 million and P22.72 million as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 10). The value of these
equity securities will fluctuate with changes in market conditions.

A 2.18% (2016: 2.81%) decrease in stock prices would have decreased equity by
P0.66 million (2016: P0.64 million) as at December 31, 2017, with all variables
remaining constant. An equal change in the opposite direction would have increased
equity by an equal but opposite amount.

In 2017 and 2016, the Association determined the reasonably possible change in

Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) Index based on the historical fluctuation of equity
securities the Association holds as of the reporting date.

.

L]



6. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying value due
to the relatively short-term raaturity of these financial instruments.

The carrying amount of the Association’s HTM investments approxi@ate its fair value
at year end. Management believes that the effect of discounting “and-future cash
flows for these instruments using the prevailing market is not significant.

The recurring fair value of AFS financial assets are determined by reference to
quoted market prices, at the close of business on the reporting date.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The different levels have been defined as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value of AFS financial assets using Level 1 inputs is P751.17 million and
P761.18 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 10).

The Association has no financial instruments measured at fair value are categorized
under Level 2 and 3. There has been no transfer between levels in 2017 and 20186.

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at December 31, this account consists of:

2017 2016
Cash on hand P30,150 P30,149
Cash in banks 45,050,926 12,772,323
Cash equivalents 233,383 2,224 133

P45,314,459 P15,026,605

Cash in banks earn annual interest ranging from 0.75% to 1.25% at respective bank
deposit rates both in 2017 and 2016.

Cash equivalents represent a 90-day time deposit with an average annual interest
rate of 1.00% in 2017 and 2016.

Interest income net of final tax recognized in profit or loss which is presented under
“Interest income”, amounted to P0.09 million and P0.10 million for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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8. Short-term Investments

This account consists of a 180-day placement amounting to P3.19 million and
P3.17 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, whlch eamns interest
of 1.00% per annum for both 2017 and 2016.

Interest income earned from this placement, net of final tax, amolinted to P17,899
and P14,206 in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

9. Receivables

As at December 31, this account consists of;

2017 2016
Interest receivables - P6,384,453 P5,912,139
Advances to officers and employees 301,355 1,045,722
Others 46,541 79,145

P6,732,349 P7,037,006

Interest receivables pertain to accrued interest of debt AFS financial assets and
HTM investments. Advances to officers and employees refers to receivables from
loans and advances granted to the Association’s officers and employees.

Interest income earned on Advances to officers and employees amounted to
P21,752 and P38,008 in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

10. Available-for-Sale F_inancia[ Assets

As at December 31, this account consists of:

2017 2016
Government debt securities P373,014,112 P380,686,513
Corporate debt securities 347,678,809 357,774,256
Equity securities 30,480,550 22,717,658

P751,173,4711 P761,178,427

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of the investments at the beginning and
end of the year is shown below:

Note 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P761,178,427 P713,700,414
Additions during the year 129,013,885 265,249,858
Reclassification 11 (87,020,796) -
Disposals during the year (21,270,931) (208,349,519)
Amortization of premium during the year (802,598) (4,361,443)
Accretion of discount during the year 457,303 2,143,130
Movement in fair value reserve (30,381,819) (7,204,013)
Balance at end of year P751,173,471 P761,178,427

This account represents investments in government debt securities and corporate
bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 6.8% in 2017 and in 2016.
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Interest income on AFS financial assets, net of final tax, amounted to P31.50 million
and P28.78 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. Dividend income on equity
securities in 2017 and 2016 amounted to P0.48 million and P0.45 million,
respectively. Gain on sale of AFS financial assets amounted to P0.09 million and
P0.31 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The fair value reserve on AFS financial assets re&ognized in statements of assets,
liabilities and fund balance amounted to losses of P31.01 million and P0.62 million as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

On November 22, 2017, an AFS financial asset amounting to P87.02 million with a
fair value reserve of P7.34 million loss was reclassified to HTM investments. As at
date of reclassification, the EIR was 4.86% and the estimated cash flows to be
recovered upon maturity of the investment in February 2032 amounted to P75.00
mitlion.

As at December 31, 2017, the fair value of the reclassified investments amounted to
P7.30 million and the unamortized fair value gain that would have been recognized in
other comprehensive income if the AFS financial assets had not been reclassified
amounted to P89.99 million for the year ended December 31, 2017. The carrying
amount of the reclassified financial assets amounted to P79.69 milion as at
December 31, 2017.

The reclassification was triggered to comply with the requirement of the IC that the
Association should maintain enough reserves in the form of government securities,
which are to be held to maturity, to satisfy any valid benefit claim of its members.
Management believes that the Association has the capability to hold the reclassified
securities until maturity.

11. Held-to-Maturity Investments

As at December 31, 2017 and 20186, the reconciliation of the carrying amount of the
Association’s held-to-maturity investments are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P97,676,722 P97,551,958
Additions during the year - 46,936,510
Reclassification 10 87,020,796 -
Disposals for the year - (47,576,000)
Amortization of premium during the year (181,631) 764,254
Balance at end of year P184,515,887 P97,676,722

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, this account represents the Association’s
investments in government debt securities with interest ranging from 4.15% to 5.38%
per annum.

Interest income on HTM investments, net of final tax, amounted to P4.14 million and
P4.40 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

This investment is in compliance with Section 405 of the Insurance Code and
Insurance Memorandum Circular 8-2006 requiring all microinsurance mutual benefit
associations to establish a Guaranty Fund and to deposit cash or government
securities equivalent to the Guaranty Fund with the Bureau of Treasury to cover for
any valid benefit claim of any of its members. The HTM investments will be
re-invested in similar instruments upon maturity.
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The contractual maturities of the Association’s HTM investments as at December 31,
2017 and 2016 is more than five (5) years.

12. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered related party if one party has control™joint control, or
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
The key management personnel of the Association are also considered to be related
parties. The Association’s key management personnel are composed of the senior
management and directors.

Outstanding
Balance
Due from (to}
Category/ Amount of the Related
Transaction Year Note Transaction Parties Terms Conditions
Entity under Common
Key Management
= Members' contributions 2017 12a P286,436,025 . P19,009,710 Payable on Unsecured;
and premiums collected demand; non- no impairment
interest bearing
2016 128 151,267,356 -
= Claims and benefits paid 2017 12b 50,926,278 (10,811,955) Payabie on Unsecured
demand; non-
interest bearing
2016 12b 40,142,438 (1,068,209)
= Share in reimbursable 2017 12¢c, 23 29,886,992 -
expense
2016 12c, 23 12,131,641 -
TOTAL 2017 P8,197,755
TOTAL 2016 (P1,068,208)

Outstanding receivables from and payables to related parties are expected to be
settled in cash.

12a Tulay Sa Pag-unlad, Inc. (TSPI), an entity with the same key management as

the Association, is a nonstock, nonprofit organization, whose mission is to
provide individuals and communities the opportunity to experience fuliness of
life through small and micro-enterprise development. Effective January 1, 2007,
TSPl collects members' contributions and premiums from the Association’s
members.

12b TSPI also settles claims to the beneficiaries of members on behalf of the

12¢

Association using the members’ contributions and premiums collected. In
instances where the claims to be settled exceeds the amount of members’
contributions and premiums collected, TSPl advances the payment of claims to
the beneficiaries. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the outstanding balance
of P10.81 million and P1.07 million, respectively, represents the setilement
claims advanced by TSPI.

TSPI provides the promotion and marketing of the Association’s products to the
TSPI's microfinance clients including collection of members’ contributions and
premiums for the said products of the Association. The Association reimburses
the marketing and sales expenses incurred by TSPl on behalf of the
Association. Effective July 1, 2016, TSPI charges the Assaciation 7% service
fee based on members’ contributions and premiums collected for the services
rendered for the Association. In 2017 and 2016, marketing and sales expenses
amounting to P29.89 million and P12.13 million, respectively, were recognized
as part of “Marketing and sales” in profit or loss.
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Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Total short-term remuneration of the Association’s key management personnel
amounted to P7.64 million and P7.01 million for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively and are recorded under “Salaries and other employee
benefits” in profit or loss. Post-employment benefits amounted to P3.87 million and
P1.43 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

13. Property, Equipment and Computer Software - net

Movements in this account are as follows:

Office Transportation

"

Furniture and Office Bullding and Computer
and Fixtures Equipment Equipment Improvements Software Total
Cost
January 1, 2016 P4,336,550 P3,734,500 P11,985,426 P325,979 P4,853,458 P25,235913
Additions 242,280 - 657,530 - 1,258,882 2,158 672
Disposals/retirements (158,203) (934,500) (1,844,859) - (118,650) (3.156.212)
December 31, 2016 4,420,627 2,300,000 10,698,087 325,978 5,993,670 24,238,373
Additions 187,280 1,600,000 2,755,030 - 784,741 5,337,051
Disposalsiretirements (25,640) (600,000) (747,135) " (81,610) (1,424,385)
December 31, 2017 4,592,267 3,800,000 12,735,992 325,979 6,696,801 28,151,038
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
January 1, 2016 4,082,857 2,387,831 8,917,661 104,797 3,529,828 18,023,074
Depreciation and
amortization for the year 205,465 440,000 2,284,208 £5,196 1,080,166 4,085,036
Disposals/retirements (158,178) (834,500) (1,940,302} - (118,608) (3,151.589)
December 31, 2016 4,130,244 1,893,331 9,271,568 169,993 4,491,385 19,956,521
Depreciation and
amortization for the year 159,762 679,999 1,851,105 65,195 977,711 3,733,772
Disposalsiretirements {25,630) {599,989) (704,128) - (81,582) (1,411,339)
December 31, 2017 4,264,376 1,973,331 10,418,545 235,188 5,387,514 22,278,954
Net Carrying Amounts
December 31, 2016 F230,383 P906,6659 P1.426,528 P155,986 P1,502 285 4,281,852
December 31, 2017 P327,831 P1,826,668 P2,317,447 Pa0,791 P1,308,287 P5,872,085
14. Other Assets
As at December 31, this account consists of:
2017 2016
Prepaid expenses P797,099 P1,762,018
Fidelity bond deposits 250,000 250,000
Cash held by investment manager/custodian 88,318 123,067
P1,135,417 P2,135,085

Prepaid expenses include unused supplies, medicard premium and prepaid

reinsurance premium.

The fidelity bond deposits in 2017 and 2016 as required by the IC have a term of
one (1) year expiring on June 25, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Cash held by investment manager/custodian pertains to cash advanced to the
investment manager/custodian for the acquisition of equity securities.
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15. Claims Payable

As at December 31, this account consists of:

-

2017 2016
Claims payable - Equity value and interest * P100,498,336.. P -
IBNR claims 4,522,059 " 3,386,108
Claims due and unpaid/resisted 1,793,394 768,250

P106,813,789 P4,154,358

]

As discussed in Note 3, the Association transferred equity value and interest of
inactive members amounted to P93.72 miillion (see Note 18) and P6.77 million (see
Note 16), respectively, in 2017. The entire amount is presented in claims payable -
equity value and interest.

Claims due and unpaid/resisted consists of claims payable for

2017 2016
Credit life P758,033 P507,000
Life maximum 456,000 -
Basic life 369,167 261,250
Life plus 185,000 -
Mortgage redemption 25,194 -
P1,793,394 P 768,250
Movements in IBNR claims are as follows:
2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P3,386,108 P4,020,189
Increase (decrease) in IBNR 1,135,951 (634,081)
Balance at end of year P4,522,059 P3,386,108
Movements in claims due and unpaid/resisted are as follows:
2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 'P768,2560 = P990,268
Claims and benefits incurred 51,951,422 39,920,420
Claims and benefits paid (50,926,278)  (40,142,438)
Balance at end of year P1,793,394 P768,250

Claims and benefits expense recognized in profit or loss as at December 31 is as

follows:
2017 2016
Claims and benefits incurred P51,951,422 P39,920,420
Increase (decrease) in IBNR 1,135,951 (634,081)

P53,087,373 P39,286,339
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16. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

As at December 31, thiﬁl account consists of;

Note 2017 2016
Accrued expenses P19,278,650- P9,061,786
Accrued interest 18 1,014,106 26,992,883
Payables to regulatory agencies 4,232,592 3,805,963

P24,525,348 P39,860,632

Accrued expenses pertain to liabilities on utilities and services incurred.

The Association accrued interest on equity value received from the members as
required by IC, however, effective February 1, 2016, interest rate on equity value
reserve was reduced from 2.00% to 0.50% as approved by the BOT. Accrued
interest of inactive members amounting to P6.77 million as at December 31, 2017
were transferred to claims payable — equity value and interest under “Claims
payable” in 2017 (see Note 15). Moreover, the accrued interest related to the equity
value reserves transferred and appropriated in the general fund balance and funds
assigned amounted to P0.90 million and P15.69 million, respectively, in 2017.

Payables to regulatory agencies include payables to Bureau of Internal Revenue,
Philhealth, Pag-lbig Fund and Social Security System.

17. Aggregate Reserves

In compliance with Section 410 of the Insurance Code, the Association accumulates
and maintains, out of the periodic members’ contributions and premiums collected,
sufficient reserves for future contractual obligations for which it holds funds in
securities satisfactory to the Insurance Commissioner consisting of bonds of the
Government of the Philippines, or any of its political subdivisions and
instrumentalities, or other good securities as may be approved by the Insurance
Commissioner. Moreover, the said reserve liability established in accordance with
actuarial procedures is approved by the Insurance Commissioner.

The movement of the account is as follow:

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of the year P13,132,536 P12,412,582
Increase during the year 41,661,661 719,954

P54,794,197 13,132,536

Starting January 1, 2017, Circular Letter No. 2016-66, Valuation standards for life
insurance policy reserves, requiring all life insurance companies to calculate the
reserves for traditional life insurance policies with a term of one year or less using
the unearned premium method is implemented. The application of the new valuation
standards for life insurance policy reserves have no significant impact since the
Association’s methodology of calculating aggregate reserves is consistent with the
new regulatory requirement.
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18. Equity Value Reserves

In compliance with Section 409 of the Insurance Code, the Association maintains an
equity value reserves of 50% of the total mandatory members’ contributions collected
thereon.

The mandatory member's contributions collected amounting™to P87.00 million and
P63.47 million has a corresponding additional equity value reserves of P43.50 million
and P31.74 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. )

The table below shows the rollforward analysis of the account as at December 31,

2017 and 2016.
Note 2017 2016

Balance at beginning of the year P329,894,308 P316,436,514
Increase in equity value 43,498,336 31,735,310
Refund of equity value ' : (1,061,444) (18,277,516)
Reclassification to claims payable 15 (93,724,224) -
Appropriation to fund assigned for

members’ benefit (112,235,787) -
Appropriation to fund assigned for

capacity building (48,101,052) -
Transfer of forfeited equity value 20 (28,351,953) -

P89,918,184 P329,894,308

Interest expense on equity value reserves amounted to P0.76 million
and P0.81 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Accrued interest on equity value reserves presented as accrued interest under
“Accrued expenses and other liabilities” in the statements of assets, liabilities and
fund balance as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to P1.01 million and
P26.99 million, respectively (see Note 16).

19. Guaranty Fund Reserves

As a microinsurance mutual benefit association, the Association is required fo
maintain Guaranty Fund amounting to P5.00 million, and every year thereafter,
increase its Guaranty Fund by an amount equivalent to 5.00% of gross premium
collections until the amount of the Guaranty Fund shall reach 25.00% of the required
networth for existing domestic life insurance companies.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the guaranty fund reserves amounted to
P104.46 million and P20.14 million, respectively.

The Guaranty fund shall be deposited with IC in cash, or in government securities
with a total value equal to such amount. As at December 31, 2017 and 20186, the
Association had restricted investments of P184.52 million and P97.68 million,
respectively, with the Bureau of Treasury to cover for any valid benefit claim of any of
its members (see Note 11).

The amount transferred from general fund to guaranty fund reserves amounted to
P14.32 million and P7.56 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 20).
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20. General Fund Balance

Section 408 of the Insurance Code requires a mutual benefit association to only
maintain free and unassigned surplus of not more than twenty percent (20%) of its
total liabilities as verified by the Commissioner. Any amount in excess shall be
returned to the members by way of dividends, enhancing the equity value or
providing benefits in kind and other relevant services. As at December 31, 2017 the
Association has an excess general fund balance amounting to P2.88 million which
will be appropriated by the Association in the subsequent periods.

The rollforward analysis of the account as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as

follows:
Note 2017 2016

Beginning balance P74,122,967 P67,985,334
Net income for the year 72,499,453 33,470,216
Transfer to guaranty fund 19 (14,321,802) (7,563,368)
Transfer to funds assigned for members

benefits (72,429,416) (13,838,449)
Transfer to funds assigned for capacity

building (31,041,178) (5,930,766)
Transfer of forfeited equity value and

interest 16, 18 29,255,787 -

P58,085,811 P74,122,967

The balance of funds assigned for members’ benefits amounted to P421.20 million
and P237.46 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, while assigned for capacity
building amounted to P188.17 million in 2017 and P104.32 million in 2016.

21. Retirement Benefit Cost

The Association has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan
covering all regular employees. Contributions and costs are determined in
accordance with the actuarial studies made for the plan. Annual cost is determined
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
valuation is made on an annual basis and the latest actuarial valuation was made as
at December 31, 2017.
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The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing
balances for net defined benefit asset and its components.

Defined Benefit Obligation Fair Value of Plan Assets  Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset)
e 2017 2016 2017 2018 07000 2016
Balance at January 1 P3,087,224 P2,464 326 P6,710,834  P5.271.517 (P3,623,610) {P2,807,181)
Included in Profit or Loss ! e
Current service cost 664,779 415,915 - - > 664,779 415,918
Interest cost 156,923 127,393 364,620 293,702 " (207,697) (166,309)
821,702 543,308 364,620 283,702 457,082 248,606
Included in OCI
Remeasurement ioss (gain):
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Demographic assumptions - - - - - -
Financial assumptions (48,870) 28,527 - - (48,870) 28,527
Experience adjustment 2,114,643 131,189 - - 2,114,649 131,189
Return on plan assets excluding
interest income - - {15,655) (383,267) 15,655 383,267
Change in the effect of asset ceiling
(mevement in asset ceiling -
interest expense cn effect of
asset ceiling) - - 123,150 708,008 {123,150) (709,008)
2,065,779 158,716 107,435 325,741 1,958,284 (166,025)
Others .
Contributions paid by the employer - - 925,000 900,000 (925,000) (200,000)
Benefits paid — (80,126) - (80.128) - -
- (80,128) 926,000 818,874 (925,000) {200,000}

Balance at December 31 P5,974,705 P3,087,224 P8,107,949 PE710,824 (P2,133,244) {P3,623 610)

The changes in the effect of asset ceiling are as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P3,030,502 P3,555,699
Remeasurement gain on the change in the '
effect of asset ceiling (123,150) (709,008)
Interest expense on effect of asset ceiling 154,040 183,811
Balance at end of year P3,061,392 P3,030,502
The Association’s plan assets consist of the following:
2017 2016
Unit investment trust funds P9,471,235 P8,285,194
Mutual funds 1,697,821 1,456,067
Cash 285 75

P11,169,341 P9,741,336

The table below shows the rolliforward analysis of remeasurement of retirement asset
account presented under statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

2017 2016

Beginning balance P556,694 P390,669
Remeasurement gain (loss) of retirement

asset (1,958,284) 166,025

(P1,401,590) P556,694
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The Association is not required to contribute o the defined benefit retirement plan for
2018. The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

_ 2017 2016
Discount rate 5.20% 5.08%
Future salary growth : 5.00% 5.00%

S——

o

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on the 2001 CSO Table -
Generational mortality table. The current members’ longevity is at age 30.09 in 2017.

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 11.96 years and
5.42 years as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

2017
Carrying Contractual Within Within More than
Amount Cash Flows 1Year 1-5Years 5 Years
Defined benefit
obligation P5,974,705 pP7,280,861 P5,150,215 P458,864 P1,6871,782

Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial

assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Defined Benefit Obligation

Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (P302,931) P367,000
Future salary growth (1% movement) 330,952 (279,052)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows
expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumption shown.

These defined benefit plans expose the Association to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risk, interest rate risk, and market (investment) risk.

The Association is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under
the Retirement Plan before they become due. For this reason, the amount and timing
of contributions to the plan assets are at the Association’s discretion. However, in the
event a benefit claim arises and the plan assets is insufficient to pay the claim, the
shortfall will then be due and payable from the Association to the plan assets.
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22. Salaries and Other Employee Benefits

The account is consists of:

-

Nofte - 2017 2016
Salaries # P31,747,120 P32,503,127
Bonuses 10,169,649 8,758,828
Contributions to SSS, Philhealth, and

Pag-ibig 2,727,543 2,819,190
Retirement expense 21 457,082 249,606
Others 5,861,655 3,712,382

P50,963,049 P48,043,133

Salaries pertain to the basic salaries of employees of the Association.
Bonuses consist of the 13th month pay and other bonuses paid to the employees.

Others includes staff trainings, employees’ leave conversion and other benefits
granted to employees.

23. Marketing and Sales

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016
Common expenses 12 P29,886,992 P12,131,641
Incentives 6,677,708 1,290,404
Meals 3,102,516 3,020,810
Promotions 2,317,450 186,667
Operation meeting 785,436 439,044
Transportation 776,932 667,450
Lodging 220,955 193,780
Training - 31,768

P43,667,989  P17,961,564

Common expenses pertain to reimbursements of marketing and sales expenses
incurred by TSPI on behalf of the Association.

Incentives represent the amount given to the insurance officers and/or account
officers who were able to meet the number of insurance plan sold based on the
Association’s incentive schemes.
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24, Maturity Analysis of Financial and Non-financial Assets and Liabilities

The following table presents the assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and
2016 analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled within

one year and beyond one year from the reporting date:

L

2017

Due Within Due Beyond
Note One Year One Year Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 7 P45,314,459 P - P45,314,459
Short-term investments 8 3,192,525 - 3,192,525
AFS financial assets 10 - 751,173,471 751,173,471
HTM investments 11, 19 - 184,515,887 184,515,887
Receivables 9 6,732,349 - 6,732,349
Due from related party 12 8,197,755 - 8,197,755
Other assets 14 88,318 - 88,318
63,525,406 935,689,358 999,214,764
Non-Financial Assets
Property, equipment and
computer software - net 13 5,872,085 - 5,872,085
Retirement asset 21 2,133,244 - 2,133,244
Other assets 14 1,047,099 - 1,047,099
P72,577,834 P935,689,358 P1,008,267,192
Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities 16 P20,292,756 P - P20,292,756
Claims payable 15 106,813,789 - 106,813,789
Equity value reserves 18 89,918,184 - 89,918,184
217,024,729 - 217,024,729
Non-Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities 16 4,232,592 - 4,232,592
Aggregate reserves 17 54,794,197 - 54,794,197
P276,051,518 P - P276,051,518
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2016

Due Within Due Beyond
Note One Year One Year Total
Financial Assets -y
Cash in bank and cash :
equivalents 7 P15,026,605 P - P15,026,605
Short-term investments 8 3,166,857 s 3,166,857
AFS financial assets 10 - 761,178,427 761,178,427
HTM investments 11, 19 - 97,676,722 97,676,722
Receivables g 7,037,006 - 7,037,006
Other assets 14 123,067 - 123,067
25,353,535 858,855,149 884,208,684
Non-Financial Assets
Property, equipment and
computer software - net 13 4,281,852 - 4.281,852
Retirement asset 21 3,623,610 - 3,623,610
Other assets (Prepaid
expenses and fidelity _
bond deposit) 14 2,012,018 - 2,012,018
P35,271,015 P858,855,149 P894,126,164
Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities(excluding
payables to regulatory
agencies) 16 P36,054,669 P - P36,054,669
Claims payable 15 4,154,358 - 4,154,358
Equity value reserves 18 329,894,308 - 329,894,308
Due to related party 12 1,068,209 - 1,068,209
371,171,544 - 371,171,544
Non-Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities(payable
to regulatory agencies) 16 3,805,963 - 3,805,963
Aggregate reserves 17 13,132,536 - 13,132,536
P388,110,043 P - P388,110,043

L

25, Reclassification

In 2017, the Association reclassified some accounts in profit or loss to be consistent
with the nature of the accounts.

Accordingly, the Association also reclassified the comparative figures in 2016.

Before After

Reclassification Reclassification Reclassification

Marketing and sales P16,671,160 1,290,404 P17,961,564
Incentives 1,290,404 (1,290,404) -

The reclassification represents the amount paid to insuraﬁce officers in marketing the

product of the Association which was previously presented as “Incentives” in profit or
loss.
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The above reclassification has no material effect on the information in the statements
of assets, liabilities and fund balance, and statements of comprehensive income
since there was no change in the total assets and net income for the year ended
2016. Accordingly, the statement of financial position at the begmnmg of the earliest
comparative period is not presented.

A ".\‘

-

26. Supplementary Information “Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)
Based on Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRS, and such other standards
and/or conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to
provide in the notes to the financial statements, certain supplementary information
for the taxable year. The amounts relating to such supplementary information may
not necessarily be the same with those amounts disclosed in the financial statements
which were prepared in accordance with PFRS.

The following is the tax information required for the taxable year ended
December 31, 2017:

A. Withholding Taxes

Tax on compensation and benefits P3,620,445
Expanded withholding taxes 336,128
P3,956,573

B. All Other Taxes (Local and National)

Other taxes paid during the year recognized under

“Taxes and licenses” account under General and

Administrative Expenses

License and permit fees P20,819

C. Tax Contingencies

On October 25, 2017, the Association received a letter of authority from BIR
RDO No. 050-South Makati regarding the examination of the Association’s books
of accounts for the period from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016. As of
date, the Association has not received any other correspondences from the BIR.

.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR FILING
WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Board of Trustees and Members

TSPI Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

3rd Floor, Tulay sa Pag-unlad, Inc. (TSPI) Building
2363 Antipolo St., Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TSPI Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(the Association), a nonstock, nonprofit organization, as at and for the year ended December 31,
2017 on which we have rendered our report dated April 27, 2018.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of
the Association taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in the following
accompanying schedules is the responsibility of the Association’s management:

I.  Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards; and
i. Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements.

The supplementary information are presented for purposes of complying with the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, and are not required parts of the basic financial
statements. Such supplementary information have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, present fairly, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

Vaﬂm P. Mocrnss

VANESSA P. MACAMOS
Partner
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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.

LIST OF EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
SCHEDULE OF ALL PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(PFRSs) [WHICH CONSIST OF PFRSs, PHILIPPINE ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (PASs) AND PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS] EFFECTIVE
AND NOT EFFECTIVE
AS AT December 31, 2017

PINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND | |
RETATIONS . .| Adopted
;.Eff_cuveasnfuecemher&l 2017 e . e

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of F!nanc:al
Statements v
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting I
(Revised) | Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an

Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or v
Associate
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First- v
time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from v
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and v
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle: First-
time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - v
Repeated Application of PFRS 1
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle: : [ o
Borrowing Cost Exempticn
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: PFRS v
version that a first-time adopter can apply
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle: v
Deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment of
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based v
Payment Transactions
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle: v
Mezning of ‘vesting condition’
Amendments to PFRS 2: Classification and Measurement v
of Share-based Payment Transactions
PFRS3 | Business Combinations v
(Revised)
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle: v
Classification and measurement of contingent comsideration
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: Scope F

exclusion for the formation of joint arrangements




"The Assaciation will adopt these new and/or amendment standards on January 1, 2018.
? The Association will adopt these new and/or amendment standards on January 1, 2019.
2 The Association availed the temporary exemption
*These interpretations are approved by PIC and FRSC but pending approval of BOA.

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORT!NG STANDARDS AND e u e
INTERPRETATIONS ) - | Adopted { o "2r
| Effective as of December 31, 2017 e Rdoptediy Ap?h‘"‘”‘e
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts o
Amendments to PAS 38 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee v
Contracts
Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 8, Financial 7
Instruments with PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts
PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued v
Operations
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle: v
Changes in method for disposal
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources v
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of v
Financial Assets
Amendments to PAS 38 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of v
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about F
| Financial Instruments
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of 7
Financial Assets
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial v
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of i
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle: v
‘Continuing involvement' for servicing contracts
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Offsetting disclosures in condensed interim financial N
statements
PFRS 8 Operating Segments A
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle: v
Disclosures on the aggregation of operating segments
PFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014) ',3
Amendments to PFRS 9: ‘Prepayment Features with v
Negative Compensation




| PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTihlG STANDARDS AND
. INFERPRETATIONS :
f Effectwe as of Dacemher 31 201?

Adopted |

| Adopted

Mot
Applicable

PFRS 10

Consolidated Flnanctal Statements

v

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Financial Statements, Jeint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):
Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):
Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 (_Bycie:
Clarification of the scope of the standard

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Measurement of short-term receivables and payables

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: Scope
of portfolio exception

PFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 16

Leases

ol S iM% =




L

 PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPQRBNG STANDARDS AND _ e
INTERPRETATIONS i Adopted |  Aaofatle
 Effective as of December 31, 2017 | S Tenlasy
Philippine Accounting Standards ,
PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements v
(Revised) - =
Amendment to PAS 1; Capital Disclosures v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial 7
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of ltems of Other v
Comprehensive Income
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Presentation of Financial Statements - Comparative \4
Information beyond Minimum Requirements
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Presentation of the Opening Statement of Financial v
Position and Related Notes .
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative v
PAS 2 Inventories v
PAS7 Statement of Cash Flows v
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative v
PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and v
Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Construction Contracts
PAS 12 Income Taxes
Amendment to PAS 12: Deferred Tax: Recovery of v
Underlying Assets
Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax ¥
Assets for Unrealized Losses
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2008 - 2011 Cycle: ;
Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of Servicing v
Eguipment
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Restatement of accumulated depreciation (amortization) on v
revaluation (Amendmenis to PAS 16 and PAS 38)
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of v
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer v/
Plants
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v




0

' PHILEPPII‘QE FINANCIAL REPORTING STﬁNDARDS AND

: et o Not
INTERPRETATIONS - Adopted | .0 .
Effective as of December 31, 2017 | ' | Adopted | Apprcab'e :
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
{Amended)

Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee v
Contributions .
| Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Discount rate in a regional market sharing the same v
| currency - e.g. the Eurozone
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of v
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
(Revised)
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle: v
Definition of ‘related party’
PAS 26 Accounting and Reparting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements %
(Amended)
Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011) v
Investment Entities
Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate v
Financial Statements
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
(Amended) ST
Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint v
Venture
Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28: v
Investment Entities: Applying the Consaclidation Exception
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle: 7
Measuring an associate or joint venture at fair value
Amendments to PAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates v
and Joint Ventures
PAS 29 Financial Réporﬁng in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation ¥
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial v
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and v
Financial Liabilities
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2008 - 2011 Cycle:
Financial Instruments Presentation - Income Tax v
Conseguences of Distributions
PAS 33 Eamings per Share v

N
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: PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORT!NG STANDARES AND

Plants

. il Not Not !
| INTERPRETATIONS Adopted | | :
: Eﬂectwe as of December 31, 201?' i Adopted App hcable
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reportmg -’
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle: Interim 7
Financial Reporting - Segment Assets and Liabilities
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Disclosure of information “elsewhere in the interim financial v
report’
PAS 36 Impairment of Assets v
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures s
for Non-Financial Assets
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets v
PAS 38 Intangible Assets v
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Restatement of accumulated depreciation (amartization) on v
revaluation (Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38)
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of v
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement v
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition v
of Financial Assets and Finzncial Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of v
Forecast Intragroup Transactions
Amendments to PAS 39; The Fair Value Option v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee P
Contracts
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of v
Financial Assets
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of v
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and v
PAS 39; Embedded Derivatives :
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged ltems v
Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and o
Continuation of Hedge Accounting
PAS 40 Investment Property v
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: Inter-
relationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 (Amendment to v
PAS 40)
Amendments to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property v
PAS 41 Agriculture v
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer v




4

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPOR“nNG STANDARDS AND

Not |

Services

| INTERPRETATIONS Adopted /([ i 8 _
| Effective as of December 31, 2017 g Aopedl Soplicable

Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and v
Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar v
Instruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease v

IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - v
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v/
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS v
39: Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements v

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v

IFRIC 14 PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum v
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation ¥

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v

IFRIC 19 | Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments v

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine v

IFRIC 21 Levies 4

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration ¥

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments v

SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro v

SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating v
Activities

SiC-15h Operating Leases - Incentives v
Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its v
Shareholders

SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the >
Legal Form of a Lease

SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v

SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Invelving Advertising v




w

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND

Control in Consolidated Financial Statements

e T Not
INTERPRETATIONS Adopted | L et
Effective as of December 31, 2017 i Adopted gy Anplicable
sic-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v
Philippine Interpretations Committee Questions and Answers
PIC Q&A PAS 18, Appendix, paragraph 9 - Revenue recognition for & v
2006-01 sales of property units under pre-completion contracts
PIC Q&A PAS 27.10(d) - Clarification of criteria for exemption from v
2006-02 presenting consaolidated financial statements
PIC Q&A PAS 1.103(z) - Basis of preparation of financial statements
2007-01- if an entity has not applied PFRSs in full v
Revised
PIC Q&A PAS 20.24.37 and PAS 39.43 - Accounting for government v
2007-02 loans with low interest rates [see PIC Q&A No. 2008-02]
PIC Q&A PAS 40.27 - Valuation of bank real and other properties v
2007-03 | acquired (ROFA)
PIC Q&A PAS 101.7 - Application of criteria for a qualifying NPAE v
2007-04
PIC Q&A PAS 19.78 - Rate used in discounting post-employment
2008-01- benefit obligations v
Revised
PIC Q&A PAS 20.43 - Accounting for government loans with low v
2008-02 interest rates under the amendments to PAS 20
PIC Q&A Framework.23 and PAS 1.23 - Financial statements v
2008-01 prepared on a basis other than going concern
PIC Q&A PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rate used in determining the fair value v
2009-02 of government securities in the Philippines
PIC Q&A PAS 38.AG71-72 - Rate used in determining the fair value 7
2010-01 of government securities in the Philippines
PIC Q&A PAS 1R.16 - Basis of preparation of financial statements v
2010-02
PIC Q&A PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Current/non- v
2010-03 current classification of a callable term loan
PIC Q&A PAS 1.10(f) - Requirements for a Third Statement of o
2011-01 Financial Position
PIC Q&A PFRS 3.2 - Common Control Business Combinations v
2011-02
PIC Q&A Accounting for Inter-company Loans >
2011-03
PIC Q&A PAS 32.37-38 - Costs of Public Offering of Shares v
2011-04
PIC Q&A PFRS 1.D1-D8 - Fair Value or Revaluation as Deemed Cost v
2011-05
PIC Q8A PFRS 3, Business Combinations (2008), and PAS 40,
2011-06 Investment Property - Acquisition of Investment properties - v
asset acquisition or business combination?
PIC Q8A PFRS 3.2 - Application of the Pooling of Interests Method
2012-01 for Business Combinations of Entities Under Common v
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND i e e

INTERPRETATIONS ' Joisen elf jAdopted = oa L Ll

__Efféi:ﬁve‘ as of December 31, 2017 _ e A§op_ted 1 Applicable

PIC Q&A Cost of a New Building Constructed on the Site of a v

2012-02 Previous Building

PIC Q&A Applicability of SMEIG Final Q&As on the Application of v

2013-01 IFRS for SMEs to Philippine SMEs

PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2013 >

2013-02

PIC Q&A PAS 19 - Accounting for Employee Benefits under a

2013-03 Defined Contribution Plan subject to Requirements of v

(Revised) Republic Act (RA) 7641, The Philippine Retirement Law

PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC O&As - Cycle 2015 v

2015-01

PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2016 o

2016-01

PIC Q&A PAS 32 and PAS 38 - Accounting Treatment of Club Shares v

2016-02 Held by an Entity

PIC Q&A Application of PFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

2016-04 Customers” on Sale of Residential Properties under Pre- v
Completion Contracts

PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2017 v

2017-01

PIC Q&A PAS 2 and PAS 16 - Capitalization of operating lease cost v

2017-02 as part of construction costs of a building

PIC Q&A PAS 28 - Elimination of profits and losses resulting from v

2017-03 transactions between associates and/or joint ventures

PIC Q&A PAS 24 - Related party relationships hetween parents, v

2017-04 subsidiary, associate and non-controlling shareholder

PIC Q&A PFRS 7 - Frequently asked questions on the disclosure

2017-05 requirements of financial instruments under PFRS 7, v
Financial Instruments: Disclosures

PIC Q&A PAS 2, 16 and 40 - Accounting for Collector’s ltems o

2017-06

PIC Q&A PFRS 10 - Accounting for reciprocal holdings in associates v

2017-07 and joint ventures

PIC Q&A PFRS 10 - Requirement to prepare consolidated financial

2017-08 statements where an entity disposes of its single v
investment in a subsidiary, associate or joint venture

PIC Q&A PAS 17 and Philippine Interpretation SIC-15 - Accounting v

2017-09 for payments between and among lessors and lessees

PIC Q&A PAS 40 - Separation of property and classification as v

2017-10 investment property

PIC Q&A PFRS 10 and PAS 32 - Transaction costs incurred to

2017-11 acquire outstanding non-controlling interest or to sell non- v
controlling interest without a loss of control

PIC Q&A Subsequent Treatment of Equity Component Arising from v

201712 Intercompany Loans

PIC Q&A Voluntary changes in accounting policy o*

2018-01 -~ ~

The Association will adopt these new and/or amendment standards on January 1, 2018.

2 The Association will adopt these new and/or amendment standards on January 1, 2019.
g~

% The Association availed the temporary exemption
*These interpretations are approved by PIC and FRSC buf pending approval of BOA.
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND

- Not

A i Not |
INTERPRETATIONS . Adapted | . "
Effective as of December 31, 201? Vs i ._A_ﬂ_ppte_d Apphcablee
PIC Q&A Non-controlling interests and qocdwn!l 1mpalrment test 7%
2018-02
PIC Q&A Fair value of PPE and depreciated replacement cost S
2018-03
PIC Q&A Inability to measure fair value reliably for biological assets S
2{]'1 8 04 within the scape of PAS 41
PIC Q&A Maintenance requirement of an asset held under lease v
2018-05
PIC Q&A Caost of investment in subsidiaries in SFS when pooling is ik
2018-06 applied
PIC Q&A Cost of an associate, joint venture, or subsidiary in separate S
2018-07 financial statements
PIC Q&A Accounting for the acquisition of non-wholly owned S
2018-08 subsidiary that is not a business
PIC Q&A Classification of deposits and progress payments as e
2018-09 maonetary or non-monetary items
PIC Q&A Scope of disclosure of inventory write-down S
2018-10

"The Association will adopt these new and/or amendment standards on January 1, 2018.
£ The Association will adopt these new and/or amendment standards on January 1, 2019.
3 The Association availed the temporary exemption
*These interpretations are approved by PIC and FRSC but pending approval of BOA.

Legend:

Adopted - means a pariicular standard or interpretation is relevant fo the operations of the entity (even if it has no effect
or no material effect on the financial statements), for which there may be a related particular accounting policy made in
the financial statements and/or there are current transactions the amounts or balances of which are disclosed on the face
or in the notes of the financial statements.

Not Adopted - means a particular standard or interpretation is effective but the entity did not adopt it due to sither of
these two reasons: 1) The entify has deviated or departed from the requirements of such standard or interpretation; or 2)
The standard provides for an option to early adopt it but the entity decided otherwise.

Not Applicable - means the standard or interpretation is not relevant at all to the operations of the entity.




